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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Tata Power Solar Systems Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

013inion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Taut Power Solar Systems limiter] ("the 

(_ompany-). which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 3 I. 2019. the Statement of Profit and Loss, including 

the statement of Other Comprehensive Income. the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity 

for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to; the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the aforesaid Ind 
AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act;  2013, as amended ("the Act') in the 
manner so required ancl give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 
id India. of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019_ its profit including other comprehensive 
incothc its cash .flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ISAs), 

as specified under section I 43(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 

the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit or the Ind AS Financial Statements' section of our report. We are 

independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code or Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 

in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have Obtained 

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basiS for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon. 

The  Company's  Board of Direcienic  responsible for the other information. The now information comprises.the 

Board's Report. but does not include Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit ofthe Ind AS financial statements, .our responsibility is to read the Other in tOrmat ion 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with die financial statements 

or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work we 

have performe& we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information. we are required to 

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Responsibility of Management for Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect 

to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position. 

financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company 

in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 

Standards and AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules. 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting frauds and other iiregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls. that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give 

a true and fair view and are free from materialmisstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations. 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting proeeSs. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

Fraud Or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion. 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(.3)0) of the Act. we are also responsible for expressing 

our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and. based • 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 

cast significant doubt on the Company's abilitym continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty' exists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 

financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 

on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However. future events or conditions 

'cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
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Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statement's represent the underlying transactions and events in 

a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among tither matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have Complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence. and to communicate .with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditries. Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (I poi section 143 of the Act, we give in the "A nnextue I" a 

'statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and4 of the Order. 

2. 	As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to.  the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes Of our audit; 

(h) In our opinion, proper books ofactount as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination. of those hooks; 

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive 
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account; 

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 

amended; 

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31. 2019 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on Match 31. 2019 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 154(2) of the Act: 

With respect to the.  adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness orgiCh controls, refer 
to our separate Report in -Annexure 2-  to this report: 

In our opinion, the tnanagerial remuneration for the year ended March 31.2019 has been paid [provided 

by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V 

to the Act: 

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule I I of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and, according to the explanations given to us: 

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS 

financial statements - Refer Note 31 to the Ind AS financial statements: 

ii. 	The Company has made provision. as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, 
for material foreseeable losses. if any. on long-tenn contracts including derivative contracts - Refer 

Note 19 and 21 to the Ind AS financial statements: 
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iii. 	There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accoun 
ICAI Firm Rid -anon Number 101049W/E300004 

sh Ranka 
n r 

MeMbership-Nuitiber 209567 

late Mulnbai 
Date: April 1,742019 
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Annexure I referred to in clause 1 of paragraph on the report on other legal and regulatory 
requirements of our report of even date 

Re: Tata Power Solar System limited 

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including quantitative details 

and situation of fixed.assets. 

h) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year hut there is a 
regular program of verification which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to Us by the manaizement;the title deeds of the 
immovable properties included in property plant and equipment are held in the nitrite of the Company. 

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at ieasonable intervals during the 
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical edification. 

According to the information and explanation given to us by the management. the Company has granted 

loans to one Company covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 

2013. 
a) In our opinion and according to information antlexpinnations given to us by the management, 

the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. 

h) 	In the case of loans granted to the companies listed in the register maintained under section 189 
of the Act, the borrowers have been regular in the repayment of the principal and payment of 

interest wherever required. 

e) 	There are no amounts of loans granted to companies. firms or other parties listed.  in the register 

maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are overdue. for more than 

ninety days. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section 185 
and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to directors including entities in which they are 
interested and in respect of loans and advances given, investments made and. guarantees, and securities 

given have been complied with by the Company. 

The Company has not accepted deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules. 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) 

of the Order are not applicable. 

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made 
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies 
Act. 2013. related to the manufacture and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts' and 

records have been made and maintained. We have not. however, made a detailed examination of the same. 

a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory 

dues including provident fund. employees' state insurance. income-tax. duty of custom, value added tax, 

iloods.and services tax, cess and other statutore dues applicable to it. 

& 

C- 
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b) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of provident fund. employees' state insurance, income tax. duty of custom. 
value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period 

of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

c) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax. 
duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and services tax and cess on account of any 

dispute. arc as follows: 

Name 	of 	the 

statue 

Nature 	of 

dues 

Amount 	of 
Demand (Rs. 
In Lakhs) 

Period 	for 
which 
amounts 
relates to 

Forum 	where 
dispute 	is 

pending 

Amount 
paid ( Rs. In 
Lakhs) 

Amount 
unpaid ( Rs. 
In Lakhs) 

Income Tax Act, 
1961 

Income Tax 
1.629.70 

FY 2003-04 Commissioner 
Income 	Tax 1.629.70 
(Appeals) 

Income Tax Act, 
1961 

Income Tax 
580..60 

FY 2007-08 Commissioner 
Income Tax 580.60 - 

(Appeals) 

Income Tax Act, 
1961 

Income Tax 
1,419-.69 

FY 2008-09 COmniiSSIOner 
Income Tax 1.419.69 
(Appeals) 

Income Tax Act, 

1961 

Inconie Tax 
2,658.39 

FY 2009-10 Income Tax 

Appellate 959.96 1,698.43 

Tribunal 

Income Tax Act, 
1961 

Income Tax 
719.91 

FY 2010-11 Income Tax 
Appellate 719.91 
Tribunal 

Income Tax Act, 
1961 

Income Tax 
258.67 

FY 2012-13 
, 

Commissioner 
Income Tax 
(Appeals) 

258.67 

Karnataka VAT Karnataka FY 2009-10 Joint 

Act. 2003 VAT 130.27 Commissioner 130.27 

Rajasthan 	VAT 
Act, 2003 

Rajasthan 
VAT 

7,351.69 FY 2013-14, 
FY 2014-15 
and 

Rajasthan Tax. 
Board 

208.74 7.142.95 

FY 2015-16 

hi our opinion and according to the information.  And explanations given to us by the management, 
the Company has not delimited in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or 

government or dues to debenture holders. 

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management the Company has not 

raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term loans hence, 

reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the 
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given 10 us by the management 

...is-R.-wort that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of 

ti` ci51 	.@%panv has been noticed or reported during the year. 

'5) 

c)) 

.\\,9 	 
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xi) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial 
remuneration has been paid/provided by the company to its directors in accordance with provisions of 
seetion 197 read with Schedule V of the Act. 

xi i) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the 
related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the 
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable 
accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly 
reporting under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the 
Company and hence not commented upon. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements 
under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the coMpany and, not commented upon. 

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in 
section 192 of Companies Act, 2013. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company. 

For S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

ICAI firm reeis ion number: I 01049W/E300004 

arsh Ranka 
Partner 

Membership number: 209567 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: April 17, 2019 
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Annexure 2 to the Independent auditor's report of even date on the Ind AS financial statements 
of Tata Power Solar System Limited 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tata Power Solar System 
Limited ('the Company') as of March 31.2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control Over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
requited under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act. 2013. to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply With ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about Whether adequate internal financial controls Over financial reporting 
with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 'financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial cc ntrols over financial reporting, with reference to these 
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the bid AS financial statements, whether clue to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting with 
reference to these financial statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these 
Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial 
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of the Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting with reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the Ind AS financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the Ind AS financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, with reference 
to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or •fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference 
to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls 
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at 
March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued 
by the !CAI. 

For S.R. Bailiboi & Associates LLP 
ICAI firm registration number: I 01049W/E,> 00004 
Chartered Accoun s 

per 	arsh Ranks 
Partner 
Membership Number: 209567 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: April 17, 2019 
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Date April 17. 2019 

For and on behalf of fhe.Board of Directors of' 

Tata Power Solar Systems Limited 

Ashrsanna 
ManaiiaDirector &Chief Executive Officer 
DIN:

'2t i,ssl 

411Q 
'Director 
DIN: DIN: 03Q) 

Satish Gu t 	 Amey 
Chief Finantial TiCer 	 Company Secretary 

Place: Mumbai 
Date; April 12. 2019 

For S.122alliboi & Asso 'ales LLP 

Firrn Registra 	Number. 101049W/ 6300504 
Chartered A 	ants 

(VI Ranka 

embership Number209567 

Tata Power Solar Systems limited 
Balance Sheet as at March 31. 2019 
CIN: U40106KA1989PLC034989 

Particulars Note Mat 
March 31.2019 

Mat 
March 31 2018 

A ASSETS 

Non-current assets 
fa/ ProPerty. Plant and equipment 4 17,971.26 24,260.34 

Capital work-In-progress 11.85 221.99 
Intangible assets 5 287.82 434.48 

(0) Financial assets 
(9 Investment In subsidiary 5 100.00 100.00 
(ii) Trade receivables 9 722.52 429.23 
(iii) Other financial assets 12 370.67 364.09 

hir) Non-current tax assets (net) 13 3,084.18 3,084.18 
(f) Other non-current assets 	. 14 13.84 80.99 

Total non-current assets 22.562.14 28,975.30 
2 Current assets 

(a) Inventories 7 24.391,30 23,388.99 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Investments. 8 . 11,655.31 
(ii) Trade receivables 9 184,124.00 82.054.08 
hiiltash and Cash equivalents. 10 595.42 3,200.52 
(iv) Loans 11 40.36 153.42 
(v) Other financial assets 12 2,793.30 1.890,75 

fel Current income tat assets (net) 13 
(d) Other currant assets 14 19604,75 10285,19 

Total current assets 230,549.13 132,61826 

Total assets (1+2) 253.111.27 161,593.56 
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

1 Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 15 22.977.57 '22,977.57 
(b) Other equity 16 24,405.26 1992982 

Total equity 47,382.83 42,806.39 

Liabilities 

2 Noncurrent liabilities 
(a) Provisions 21 -5,659.15 4,191.18 
(b) Non-current tax liabilities (net) 20 373.55 373.55 
(c) Other noncurrent liabilities 22 1,126.21 1,102.54 

Total ncin-current liabilities 7,158.91 5,667.27 
Current liabilities 

(a) Financial liabilities 
(i) 	Borrowings 17 79,10887 29908.91 
(ii) Trade payables 	 . 

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and, 
Smell enterprises 

18 102.75 

(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and smah enterprises 

'18 85,506.70 58,95297 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 19 2,525.84 1903.53 
(t)) Current tax IlabilibeS (net) 20 42.82 427.10 
(c) Provisions 21 4,595.45 6,608.42 
(d)Olhercuirent liabilities 22 26,717.30 15,718.97 

Total current liabilities 198,569.53 113,119.90 

Total equity and liabilities (1+2+3) 253.111.27 161,593.56 
-m 	par ymng nurse are 7108. a.8.0MeTILS, 

As per our report of even date 
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Tata Power Solar Systems Limited 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019 
CIN: U40106KA1989PLC034989 

Rs in Lakhs except earnings per equityshare 
Particulars Note For the year ended 

March 31, 2019 
For the year ended 

March 31.2018 

I 	Revenue from operations 23 317.53088 274,895.97 
It 	Other income 24 2.25742 270.48 
Ill 	Total Income (I + II) 319,788.40 275,166.45 

IV 	Expenses 
Cost of materials consumed (Including sub-cOntracling cot! of 259;185.24 215,057.33 
Rs23,590.50takhs (March 31.2018: Rs.29A/811() LakhS) 

(Increase)/ decrease in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 2.33869 (850.14) 
Employee benefits expenses 25 11.004.98 11,646.60 
Finance costs 26 3,436.35 5,657.05.  
Depreciation and aMortisation expenses. 27 7.716.60 7.401.60 
Other expenses 28 23,758.51 23.33140 

V 	Total expenses 307440.37 262,243.84 
VI 	Profit before tax (Ill- V) 12,348.03 12,922.61 
VII 	Tax expenses 

Current tax (including MAT) 3.304.06 2,880.40 
Deferred tax - - 

Total.tax expenses 3,304.06 2,88040 
VIII 	Profit for the year (VI-g11) 9043.97 10,042.21 
IX 	Other comprehensive Income 

Iterna that will not be redassified to profit or loss 

(398.24) 

(85.82) 

495.24 

165.91 

(i): Remeasurements of the defined benefit 
liabilities / (asset) 

(ii) Income tax relating toilems that wit not be 
redasigied to profit or loss 

Total other comprehensive Income ((I). (ii)) (312.42) 329.33 

X 	total comprehensive income-for the year (VIII + IX) 8,731.55 10,371.54 

XI 	Earnings per equity share (Rs.): -38 
Basic 39.36 43.70 
Diluted 39.36 43.70 

he accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of,even date 

For S.R.18atiiboi & Associates LLP 
ICAI Firm Registra)idCNumber: 10,1049W/ E300004 
Chartered Accadtants 

For and on behalf of the board of Directors 'of 
Tata Power' Solar Systems Limited 
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Company Secretary 

Tate Power Solar Systems Limited 
Statement of changes In equity for the year ended March 31 2019 
CIN: U40106KA1989PLC034989 

Equity share capital Rs. In Lakhs 
As at Apnl 1, 2017 22977.57 
Mat March 31,2018 22,977.57 

As at April 1,2018 22.977,57 
As at March 31, 2019 

Other Equity 

22,977.57 

Rs in Lakhs 
Surplus (Refer Note 16) Total other equity 

Particulars Securities 
premium 

(1) 

General reserve 
(2) 

Capital 
redemption 
Reserve (3) 

Deemed equity 
(4) 

Retained 
earnings 

(S) 

As at Apri11. 2017 14,587.09 4,735.00 2.295.09 1261.87 (13.421.68) 9,457.28 
Profit! (loss) for theyear 10,04221 10,04221 
Other comprehensive income! (expense) arising from 
remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities/ 
(asset) (net of tax) 

. - - - 329.33 32933 

As at March 31,2018 14,587.09 4,736.00 2,295.00 1,261.87 (3,050.14) 19,828.82 

As at Apdl 1. 2018 14,587.09 4,73&00 2,295:00 1,261.87 (3.050.14) 15,828.82 
Profit! (loss) kw the year 9,043.97 9.043.97 
Other comprehensive Income / (expense) arising Iran- 
remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities / 
(asset) (net of tax) 

- . 
' (312.42) (312.42) 

Final cash dividend paid Sir the year ended March 31, . (3,446.64) (3.446.64) 
2018 (Rs.15 per share) 
Dividend distribute° tax on final dividend - (708.47) (708.47) 

As at March 31,2019 14,587.09 4,735.00 2,295.00 1,261.87 1.526.30 24,405.26 

Note -1 : Securities Premium 
Amounts received on issue of shares in excess of the par value has been classified as securi es premium. 

Note .2: General reserve 
The general reserve Is used from time to time tetransfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. There is no policy of regular transfer. As the general 
reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an kern of other comprehensive income, items included ih the general reserve will not be 
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss. 

Note '3: Capital redemption Reserve 
Any profit or loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company, own equity instruments is transferred to capital redemption reserve. 

Note -4: Deemed equity 
The deemed equity pertains to the accrued interest on the preference shares waived by the preference Sharelailders. 

Note-S: Retained earnings 
The amount can be distributed by -the Company as dividend to its equity shareholders. 

The accompanying notes are ail integral part of the condensed financial statements. 
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Tata Power Solar Systems Limited 
Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31 2019 
CtN U40106K419119PL0034989 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2019 
For the year ended 

March 31.2018 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Profit /ficas) before tax 12.348 03 12,92261 
Adjustments fan 

Finance costs recognised in profit or loss 3,436.35 5.657.05 
Interest income recognised in profit or loss (32.38) (122.73) 
Loss/ (Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2.18 (62.38) 
Income from government grant (1,7118.72) 
Impairmsot at finanacial assets 2,928.32 903.14 
Depreciation and amodisfiion expense 7.716.60 7,401.60 
PrOiriSine hsr Warranty 1.457.65 1.365.39 
(Gain)toss on sale Of current investments (56.36) (5280) 

27,830.39 26,303.18 

Movements in-working capital: 

Adjustments for (increase)I degrease In operating assets: 
Inventories (1002.31) 1.52297 
Trade receivables, (105,291.53) 9,713.43 . 
Other current assets (8,306.50) (3,414.48) 
Other non-current assets . 	(6.31) 
Unbilled 'avenue (1.185.01) 1,908.86 
Other linanoai assets- COrrent 27199 (297.09) 
Other financial assets - Non current (6.58) (114,93) 
Movement In Operating assets (115,519.94) 9,312.45 

Adjusfinents for increeee / (detroase) in operating 11111111844 
Trade payables 26,655.48 5.55926 
Other current liabaides 10.995.32 726:00 
Short-term provisions (3.928.86) 1,041.84 
Long-term provisions. '1,467:97 (113.24) 
Other financial liabilities - Current (21.49) (4.18) 
Movement in operatinaliabdities 35,112.42 7,20968 

Cash generated from operations (52,517.13) 42,82531 
Insane faxes paid (3.602.73) (2.902.62) 
Net cash (used in)i generated from operating activities (56,119.86) 39,92269 

Cash flows from Investing activities 

Purchase of current investments (3.500.00) (22.501.00) 
Proceeds from sale of current investments 15.211.68 10,898.49 
Interest received 32.85 147.22. 
Payments for property, plant and egulomenl (Including 
capital advances) (1.286.51) (5661.61) 
Payments for intangible assets (28.63) ow.* 
PreCeettLefrom deposal of property, plant and equipment 7.21 Aso 
Loan given to related parties (1,998.65) (5.96763) 
Loan repaid by related parties 2.098.65 7,812.83 

Net cash (used In)/ generated from from investing activities 10,536.40 (15,367.30) 

Cash floWs from financing activities 

Proceeds from torronings (short-Lena)- net. 16,555.13 (23,11229) 
Loan taken from rested parties 30.814.00 
Loan repaid to retated parties (22393.00) - 
inters/St paw (2,774,30) (8,62945) 
Dividend Paid (3,446.64) 
Dividend distribution tax paid (708,47) - 

Net cash fused IV generated from financing activities 18,526.72 (31,741.74) 

Net Increase in oath and cash equNatents (27.056.74) (7,186.35) 

Cash and cash equivalents at Me beginning of the year 3,195.39 10,384.74 

Cash and cash equivalents afthe end of the yeas (23.85835) 3,198.39 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thefinantial statements. 

As per our report Mayen date 



Tata Power Solar Systems Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 
U40106KA1989PLC034989 

1 	Corporate information 

Tam Power Solar Systems Limited ('the Company' or "TPSSL") is a manufacturer of solar-photo-voltaic cells and modules 
as well as in the Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC) in the solar energy market, wherein the manufactured 
cells/modules are utilised. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Tata Power Company Limited. 

2 	Significant Accounting Policies 

2.1 	Statement of compliance 

The financial statements has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under 
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended. 

2.2 	Basis of preparation and presentation 

This financial statements has been reported in Rs. Lakhs, except for information pertaining to number of shares and earnings 
per share information. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities (refer 
Accounting policy regarding financial instruments) which have been measured at fair value. 

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee ("Rs") which is the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company operates. 

2.3 	Other Significant Accounting Policies 

2.3.1 Current versus non-current classification  

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is 
treated as current when it is: 

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 

Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

10. 	Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged Of used to settle a liability for -at least twelve 
months after the reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is Current when: 

I, 	It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 

IP. 	It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

IP. 	It Is due to be settled within twelve-months after the reporting period, or 

IP. 	There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve Months after the reporting 
period. 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as noh-ourrent. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

The operating *le is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and eath 
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

.
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Tata Power Solar Systems Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 
CIN: U40106KA1989PLC034989 

• 
2.3.2 Non-current assets held for sale 

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or 
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary 
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable. The management must be committed to the sale, 
which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification. 

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and 
Fair value less costs to sell. 

2.3.3 Leases 

Lease arrangements where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to 
the lessee are classified as finance leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

As Lessor 

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company's net investment 
in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of retum on 
the Company's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases. 

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. 
Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the Company's 
expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial direct 
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and 
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

As Lessee 

Assets leased by the Company in its capacity as lessee where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership vest in 
the Company are classified as finance leases. Such leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair 
value and the present value of the minimum lease payments and a liability is created for an equivalent amount. Each lease 
rental paid is allocated between the liability and the interest cost so as to obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the 
outstanding liability fix each year. 

Rental expenses from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. 
Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's 
expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent 
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

2.3A Foreign currencies 

In 'preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign 
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting 
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary 
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when 
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
not retranslated 

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for: 

exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, 
which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those 
foreign currency borrowings: 

exchange differences cin monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlenient is neither 
t  d nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised 

in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayme _ -el the monetary items. 
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Tata Power Solar Systems Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2019 
CIN: U40106KA1989PLC034989 

2.3.5 Fair value measurement of financial instruments 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date using valuation 
techniques. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 

market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 

to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing 

the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic 

benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset 
in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available 

to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the 

fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
as a whole: 

Level I — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly 
or indirectly observable 

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis. the Company determines 

whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level 

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

2.3.6 Financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contract embodying the 
related financial instruments. All financial assets, financial liabilities and financial guarantee contracts are initially measured 
at transaction cost and where such values are different from the fair value, at fair value. Transaction ousts that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition 
of financial asset or financial liability. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in the Statement of profit and loss. In 
case of interest free or concession loans/debentures/preference shares given to subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, 
the excess of the actual amount of the loan over initial measure at fair value is accounted as an equity investment. 

Investment in equity instruments issued by subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are measured at cost less impairment. 

Investment in preference shares/ debentures of the subsidiaries are treated as equity instruments if the same are convertible 
into equity shares or are redeemable out of the proceeds of equity instruments issued for the purpose of redemption of such 
investments. Investment in preference shares/ debentures not meeting the aforesaid conditions are classified as debt 
:instruments at amortised cost. / ,,..c.....;\ 	 soi_A-15 il, 
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The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset 
expire, or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109. 

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control 
the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may 
have to pay. 

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company 
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

On de-reccignition of a financial asset in its,entirety, the difference between the carrying amount measured at the date of de- 
\fition and the consideration received is recognised in statement of profit 	l iqss. 	 emen 	t oross.  

Tata Power Solar Systems Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 
CIN: U401061CA1989PLC034989 

Effective interest method 

The effective interest method is a method of cal culating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest 
income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts 
or payments through the expected life of the financial 
instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period. 

(a) Financial assets 

Financial assets at amortised cost 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. 

Financial assets measured at fair value 

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a 
business model whose objective islo hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial 
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company in respect of equity investments (other than in 
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures) which are not held for trading has made an irrevocable election to present in 
other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity instruments. Such an election is made by 
the Company on an instrument by instrument basis at the time of initial recognition of such equity investments. 

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is carried at fair value 
through the statement of profit and loss. 

For financial assets maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due 
to the short maturity of these instruments. 

Impairment of financial assets 

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair value 
through the statement of profit and loss. 

The Company recognises impairment loss on trade receivables using expected credit loss model, which involves use of 
provision matrix constructed on the basis of historical credit loss experience as permitted under Ind AS 109— Impairment 
loss on investments. 

For financial assets whose credit risk has riot significantly increased since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve 
months expected credit losses is recognised. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is recognised if the 
credit risk on the financial instruments has significantly increased since initial recognition. 

De-recognition of financial assets 



Tata Power Solar Systems Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 
C1N: U40106KA1989PLC034989 

(b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Classification as debt or equity 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the 
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

Equity Instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company alter deducting all of its 
liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant Interest bearing bank loans, 
overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or 
redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the statement of profit and loss. 

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair 
value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

Financial guarantee contracts 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse 
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms 
of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. 

De-recognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

Off-setting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities arc offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets 
and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

2.3.7 Derivative financial instruments  

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign 
exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps. 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently 
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss 
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the 
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedging relationship and the nature of the hedged item. 



Tata Power Solar Systems Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 
CIN: U401061a1989PLC034989 

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not financial assets within the scope of Ind AS 109 are 
treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and 
the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL. 

3.1  Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 

New and amended standards and interpretations 

Applicability of Ind AS 115: 

On March 28, 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 115, 
Revenue from Contracts with Customers. 

Ind AS 115 introduces a five-step model to revenue recognition: 

Step I: Identify the contract(s) with a customer 
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract 
Step 3: Determine the transaction price 
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract 
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation. 

Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers and requires that 
revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for 
transferring goods or services to a customer. 

Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances 
when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the 
incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract. The impact on account of 
applying the erstwhile accounting standards instead of Ind AS 115 for the year ended March 31, 2019 is not significant. 
Further, the applicability of Ind AS 115 did not affect the revenue / reserves of the Company reporting during earlier year. 

Ind AS 115 requires extensive disclosures. However, considering that the application did not have impact on the Company, 
no further disclosure have been made. 

3.2  Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, management of the Company is required to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered 
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Detailed information about each of these 
estimates and judgctnents is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each 
affected line item in the financial statements. 

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are: 

3.2.1  Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment 

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. 

3.22 Fair value measurements and valuation processes  

of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The board of 
of the Company has appointed a professional valuer, to determine the fair value by using appropriate valuation 

es and inputs for fair value. 
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Tata Power Solar Systems Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 
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In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. 
Where level I inputs are not available, the Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The 
cross fiinctional team of the Company works closely with the valuer to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and 
inputs to the model. The Chief Financial Officer reports the finding to the board of directors of the Company every quarter 
to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities. 

3.2.3  Determination of percentage of completion 

The Company uses the proportionate completion method for recognition of revenue, accounting for unbilled revenue / 

unearned revenue and contract cost thereon for its turnkey contracts. The percentage of completion is measured by reference 

to the stage of the projects and contracts determined based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed 

to date bear to the estimated total contract costs. Use of the proportionate completion method requires the Company to 

estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts or costs to be expended. Significant 

assumptions are required in determining the stage of completion, the extent of the contract cost incurred, the estimated total 

contract revenue and contract cost and the recoverability of the contracts. These estimates are based on events existing at 

the end of each reporting date. 

3.3 Standards issued but not yet effective 

33.1 Ind AS 116 — Leases  

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified in March 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after April 1, 2019. It sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure 

of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for 

finance leases under Ind AS 17. Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from current accounting 

under Ind AS 17. Ind AS 116 requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under Ind AS 17. The 

Company is in the process of evaluating the requirements of the standard and its impact on its financial statements. 

3.3.2 Ind AS 12— Income taxes (amendments relating to income tax consequences of dividend and uncertainty over income 
tax treatments) 

The amendment relating to income tax consequences of dividend clarify that an entity shall recognise the income tax 

consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally 

recognised those past transactions or events. The company does not expect any impact from this pronouncement. It is 

relevant to note that the amendment does not amend situations where the entity pays a tax on dividend which is effectively 

a portion of dividends paid to taxation authorities on behalf of shareholders. Such amount paid or payable to taxation 

authorities continues to be charged to equity as part of dividend, in accordance with Ind AS 12. 

The amendment to Appendix C of Ind AS 12 specifies that the amendment is to be applied to the determination of 
taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over 
income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. It outlines the following: ( I ) the entity has to use judgement, to determine 
whether each tax treatment should be considered separately or whether some can be considered together. The decision 
should be based on the approach which provides better predictions of the resolution of the uncertainty (2) the entity is 
to assume that the taxation authority will have full knowledge of all relevant information while examining any amount 
(3) entity has to consider the probability of the relevant taxation authority accepting the tax treatment and the 
determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates would depend 
upon the probability. The Company does not expect any significant impact of the amendment on its financial 
Statements. 

3.3.3 Ind AS 109— Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 

The amendments relate to the existing requirements in Ind AS 109 regarding termination rights in order to allow 

measurement at amortised cost (or, depending on the business model, at fair value through other comprehensive income) 
even in the case of negative compensation payments. The Company does not expect this amend 	to have any impact on 

0 financial statements. 
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3.3.4 Ind AS 19 — Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement 

The amendments clarify that if a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs, it is mandatory that the current service 
cost and the net interest for the period after the re-measurement are determined using the assumptions used for the re-
measurement. In addition, amendments have been included to clarify the effect of a plan amendment, curtailment or 
settlement on the requirements regarding the asset ceiling. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any 

significant impact on its financial statements. 

3.3.5 Ind AS 23— Borrowing Costs 

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended 
use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the finds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation 
rate on general borrowings. The Company does not expect any impact from this amendment. 

3.3.6 Delayed payment charges were hitherto recognized only when they are realised/recovered. With effect from April 1, 
IS, the Company has revised its accounting policy to recognize Delayed Payment Charges (DPC) on accrual basis based 

on contractual. terms and an assessment of certainty of realization which could be.based either an acknowledgement of the 
charges by the concerned customer or if a regulatory or statutory body passes a favourable order. Management believes 
that this policy results in the financial statements providing reliable arid more relevant information about the effects of 
transaction on the. Company's financial position and performance. The revision in accounting policy has been applied 
retrospectively and.does not have any Significant impact on current year and previous year statement of profit and loss and 
retained earnings as at March 31,2011. 

o 	 0 
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Note - 4 : Property, plant and equipment 

Accounting Policy 

Land arid buidings held for use in the production or supply of geode or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated ii, the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated Impairment losses. 

Freehold lend snot depreciated. 

FixtureS and equipment (induding vehicles) are stated at oast leSs accumulated depredation end accumulated Imparmenflossis. 

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes indirect costs and. for -qualifying assets, borrowing costs 
capitalised In accordance with the Cornpanys accounting policy. Such properfies are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for Intended use. Depreciation of 
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their Intended use. 

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ partof the asset separately. if the component/ pad has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful lire that is materially different 
from that of the remaining asset. These components are depredated °Vet their useful lives:the remaining 'asset is depreciated over the life of the mintipalasset. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required 
to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and 
equipment as a replacement lithe recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. 

Subsequent costs am included in the asset's tarrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it Harobable that Mute economic benefits associated with the Item will flow to the Company and 
the cost of theltem can be measured reliably. Thecarrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate assets are derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are.charged to profit and loss 
during the reporting period In which they are incurred_ 

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other Man freehold land and properties under construction) less their residUal values over their useful livet,esing the straight-line method. The estimated 
useful lives, iesidual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a proSpective basis, 

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis'as owned assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease 
term, assets are depredated over the shorter of the lease term and their usehil lives. 

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows: 

. property, plant and equipment• - The useful life Is as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act. 2013 except in respect of the following- categories of assets, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed as 
under based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset. The operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, 
manufacturerawarranties and maintenanceaupport, etc.: 

Plant and Machinery: Useful life ranging from) 10 14 years. 

in case of low value assets, i.e. assetaindividually costing less than Rs. SOON-. Neter, depredated In full In the year of capitalisation. 

Lease-hold improvements are etriortised Over the primary pedbd of the lease, 

Pro-rata depreciation Is charged on assets purchased and / or sold during the year. 

An Item of property, plant and equipment Is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Anygain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement 
of an item of property, plant and equipment Is determined as the difference between the sales proceedsend the tanying amount of the-asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

pi...lacalittc-.S.,r regards accounting policy on impairment of property. plant - and equipment. 
<A Su . 

/ 
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Rs. In Laths 

Particulars. Land Building .Plant and 
machinery 

Leasehold 
Improvements 

Office 
equipment 

Furniture and 
fixtures 

, Motor vehicles Total 

Gross carrying Value 
Mat April 1,2017 7,456.80 118811 22,517.65 20.14 1;667.44 '787.46 - 39,238.42 

Additions made during the year 261:56 1.685.74 - 464.70 37.78 56.70 '1508.46 

Disposals/ adjustments during the year - (345.90) (843.51) (29.84) - (1.219.27) 

As at Mardi 31, 2018 7;456.80 7,04179 23,857.49 2614 1,288.63 795.38 6410 40,525.63 

Additions-made during the year 22667 569:50 - 425.99 39.29 0:97 1;261.41 

Dim:rasp's/ adnialinehts &Mpg Me year - (974.82) (5626) (8.53) - (1,033.61) 

Mat March 31,2019 7,461.0 7,276.45 23,452.17 2184 1,664,36 826.14 57.67 40,763.43 

Accumulated depreciation 
As at April 1, 2017 tsi.as' 7,433.31 . 2014. 1,05.0 &lose - 10,176.81 

Depreciation'expense for the year 354.98 6.677.37 . 16111 59.11 12.64 7271.21 

Dispoials/ adjOstenents far the year - (18:23) (836.42) (28.08) - (1.182.73) 

As at March 31, 2018 1,020.67 13,792.45 .20.0 761.68 566.91 12.64 11265.29 

Depreciation for theyear 412.90 6,866.47,  :205,98 40.52 15.23 7:541.11 

Disposala/ adjustments during the year (972.56) - (43.13) (8.53) (1,029.22) 

49 at March 313 2019 - 1,433.77 19,686.36 26.84 .914.44 .698.90 27.87 22,782.11 

Net Block as at March 312019 '7,456.80 6,841.69 3,766.81 .749.92 127.24 29.80 17,971.26 

Net Block as at March 31, 2018 7,466.80 6,028.92 10,066,04_ 537.06 128.47 44.06 24,26134 
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Note -.6:   Intangible assets 

Accounting Policy 

Intangible assets acquired separately 

intangible assets With finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, Amortisation is recognised one straight-line basis over their 
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at theend of each reporting period; with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible 
assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carded at cost leseaccurnidated linpairment losses. 

Derecognition of intangible assets  
, 

An Intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected front use or disposal. Gains °(losses arising from derecognitioniof at, Intangible asset, measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the earning amount of the asset, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised. 

Useful lives of intangible assets 

Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows: 

Software purchased : 3 years 

The estimated useful life °tithe' intangible assets and the amortisation period are reviewedatithe.end at each financial year end the amonilation method is revised to reflect the changed pattern. 

Impairment of Property, ',tsetse° Equipment and intangible assets 

Mat the end of eaCh accounting year, the Company reviews the tarrying amounts of Its Property. plantand equipment and intangibleessets to detenmine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an 
Impairment loss. If such indication exists,the said assets are tested for impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any..GoodwSI and the intangible assets with indefinite life are tested for Impairment each year. 

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount Is determined: 

in the case of an Individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use; end 

in the case of a cash generating Snit (a group °Tassels thet generates identified, independent cash flows), at the hinher of the cash generating'unds net:selling price and the value in use, 

(The amount of value in use is detemiined as the present value of 'estimated future,cash thaw from the continuing use of an asset and from its diSposatat the end of Rs useful life. For this purpose, the, discount rate (pre-tax) 
is determined based on the weighted average cost of capital of the company suitably adjusted for risks specified to the estimated cash flows of the asset). 

For this purpose, a cash generating unit is ascertained as the smallest identifiablegroup of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the caih inflows from other assets or groups of assets. 

If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less then its canyingiamount, such deficit is recognised immediately !tithe Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying 
amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amountof the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to the revised.estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the Increased carrying amount does not 
exceedlhe carrying amount that Would have been determined had no Impairment losi Is recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior year's. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss 
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Rs. in Lakhe 

Partioulars Software Technical - 
'Knowhow' 

Total 

Gross carryinoNaille 
As at April 1,2017 858134 .907,39 1,566.73 
Additions made during the-year-  194.36 194.36 
Disposals/ adjustments during:the year (35.36) - (3138) 

As at March 11, 2018 117.34 907:39 1,724.73 
Additions made during the year 28.83 29.83 
Disposals/ adjustments during.  theyear . - 

As at March 31, 2019 846.17 907.39 1,763.66 

Accumulated ansartisation 
As at April 1, 2017 287.83 907.39 1,196,22 
Arkortisatim expense for the 130.39 -130.39 

Disposals( adjusimente for the- year (3516) (35.36) 

As at March 31, ate 183.86 333.79 1, 290.i5 
Amortisation expense 175.49 175.49 
DiSposalstadjustments during illeyear . - - 

As at Mirth 31, 2119 668.36 107.39 .1,465.74 

Not Block its at March 31 2019 287.82 287.82 
Net.Block as at March 31, 2018 434.48 434A8 
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Note .6 Non-current Investments 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2019 

As at 
March 31, 2018 

(i) Investments in equity instruments at cost 
Unquoted investments (all fully paid) 

Chirasthaayee Same Limited (vreolly owned subsidiary) (1.000,000 shares 
of Rs. beach) 

100.00 100.00 

Total 100.00 100.00 

Aggregate value 61 unquoted investments 100.00 100.00 

Note • 6.1: Investment In equity instrument 
The Company has incorporated a subsidiary Chiresiheayee Saurya Limited registered in Karnataka on June 14 2016. The Company has made total 
investment of Rs. 100 Lakhs in the form of equity as at March 31, 2019. 

NOte • 7: Inventories 

Accounting Palm( 

Inventories are slated -at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventaies are determined on a weighted average basis. Cost includes 
all charges in bringing the goods to the point of sale. including octrol and other levies, transit insurance and recaNing dharges. Work-in-progress and 
finished goads include appropriate proportion of overheads and, where Spplicable, excise duty. Net  realisable value represents the estimated selling 
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make' the sale. 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2019 

Mat 
Match 31, 2018 

(Lower of cost and net realisable value) 
Raw materials 15,689.06 11226.32 
Work-in-progress 292.69 635.60 
Finished goods' 7,452.14 9447.92 
Stores and spares 957,39 2,079.15 

Total 24,391.30 23,388:99 
Included above, goods-in-transre. 

Raw materials 3.108.11 484.16 
Finished goods 3,108.98 6,435.94 

Total 6,297.09 6.920.10 
na cost 01 matenals consumed include Inventones and project related materials delivered at site recognised as an expense during the year was Rs. 

235,594,74 Lakhs (for the year ended March 31,2018; Rs. 185,639.23 Laths) 
The oast of Inventories recognised as an expense, referred above. Includes Rs 438.96 Laths (for the year ended March 31.2018: Rs 427.52 Laths) 
In respect of writedowns of Inventory to net realisable value. 

The Mode of valuation of Inventories has been stated above. 

Note 4: Current Investments 

Particulars As at March 31,2019 As at March 31, 2016 
No. of Units Amount No. of Units Amount 

Unquoted Investments in Mutual Funds 
Axis Liquid Fund- Direct Growth 337.275 6,501.07 
$EM mutual Fund (Premier Liquid fund -Regular pain --growth) 18,443 50084 
latest° India Uquid Fund. Direct Growth '194.535 4.653,40 

Total 11,655.31 
Aggregate value of unquoted current investments 11,655.31 
Aggregate value provision for dim:lotion in the value of cu 	nt 	 - . 
Investments 
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Note -9: Trade receivables 

Particulars. As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 
. 	Current Non-current Current Nan-current 

Considered Good Secured - . - - 
Considered Good- unsecured 185721.21 72252 84,835.53 429.23 
Doubtful 8792.27 455.10 4,72109 455.10 
Less: Allowance far doubtful debts (including expected 
credit loss allowance) 

(10189,48) (45510) . 	(7.504,54) (455.10) 

Total 184,124.00 722.52 82,054.08 429.23 

Note - 9.1: 
The average credit period on sale of goods and services ranges between 60 to 90 day . No Interest la normally charged on the trade receivable 
outstanding balances. Before accepting any new customer, the Company does a credit evaluation either through internal evakiations or through 
external analysts reports except in the case of Government funded projects and large Public Sector Undertakings (PSUs) which are considered to 
have high credit quelitt, to assess the potential Custome(s Credit quality. 

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or 
other receivable are itie from arms or Private companies respectively in which any director is a partner. a director or a member. 

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix for 
different categories of .customers. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss excellence and adjusted for forward looking 
information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due, and the rates as given in the provision 
matrix. The provision mathx at the end of the reporting period is as follows: 

Ai (Usti 
Particulars 
	

Average Expected credit loss (%) 
Wthin thetredit period 	 0.84% 
1-30 days peal due 	 1.98% 
31-60 days past due 	 .2.51% 
81-90:days past due 	 :295% 
91-123 days past due 
121-150 days past due 	 4.33% 
151-180 days past.due 	 5.22% 
More than 180 days pad due 	 7.22% 

Rile of receivables 
As it March 31, 

2019 
1401301.78 

Rs. In Lakhs 
As at March 31, 

2018 
33,46917 

Parilculara 

Wchin the credit period 
1-30 days past due 18,393.23 18.042.99 
31-60 days past due 11.790.87 io.seiso 
619O days past due 3,085.92 4.857.82 
91-120 days past due 1.043.78 3.691.20 
121-150 days past due 1993.50 1.532.86 
151-180 dais past due 89722 1.473.43 
More than 180 days past due 16.384.80 16.794.08 

Movement In the allowance for doubtful receivables (Including expected credit loss allowance) 
a Expected creditoss allowance 

Particulars As at 
March 31,2019 

As at 
March 31, 2018 

Balance at beginning of the year 2,78A45 452.74 
Movement in expected credit loss allairance on trade receivables calculated at lifetime 
expected credit losses (1,184.24) 2.328.71 

Etalancest end of the year 1.59721 :2.781,45 

bi Specific allowance for doubtful receivables 
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2019 
As at 

March 31.2018 
Balance at beginning of the year 5,178.19 6723.35 
Acid Specific allowance on trade receivables 5.529.15 117.10 
Less: Reversal of allowance on collection (1,4450.00) (1,88226) 
Balance at end of the year 9.247:37 5.178.19 

The concentretion.of creddristi is limited due to the fact that the customer base is large and unrelated. 

During the year, the Company made co write-offs of trade receivables; it does not expect to receive future cash flaws or recover*, from collection of 
cash Vow; previously written off. 
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Note -10: Cash andtash equivalents 

Accountina Policy 
cash and C0Sh equkialent in the balarice sheet comprise Cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with anpriginal maturity of three months 
or less, which are subject to an insignffidant risk of changes in value. 
Foe the purpose of the statement of cash flows cash and cash equivalents don-aisle( cash and short-tem) deposits. as defined above, net of 
outstanding bank overdrafts as May are considered an integral pan of the Company's cash management. 

Particulars As at 
March 31,2019 

As at 
march 31.2018 

Balances with banks 595 42 3200.52 

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 595.42 3,200.52 

Bank Overdrafts (24,453.77) (2.13) 
Cash and cash equivalents as per statement of cashflows (23,858:35) 3,198.39 

Reconciliation of Liabilities from Financing Activities 

Particulars As at r  

Marc), 31, 2018 
Cash Flows Non-cash 

TransoCildns 

.,... 	.. —.... 
As at 

Mardh 31, 
2019 

Proceeds  
Repayment 

Nori-OurrentElorrowings (indtichng.Cun-eril Metudy of elOn-arrent - 
Bona:rings) 

Current Borroangs '(excluding 'Bank Overdraft) 29.606.78 93 143,709. . 	. ' (li§,ezi.pi) 54,655.10 

Total 29,606.78 -143209,53 (118,661.61) 54,655.10 
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Ncite - 11: Loans 

Pedicure's As at March 31, 2019 Mat March 31,2018 
Current Non-current Current Non-current 

Loans to related parties 

Considered Good- Secured . 
Considered Good- Unsecured 
Having SNnkicant Increaspin Credit Risk 
'Credit Impaired 

Other Loan 
Considered Good- Secured 
Considered Good- Unsecured 
Having Significant Increase in Credit RSk 
Credit Impaired 

- 

- 
40:36 

.. 

- 

- 

- 

- 
100.00 

. 

- 

- 
53.42 

• 

Total 49.36 153.42 

Note - 11:1: 
The Inter- Corporate Deposit were provided to itt sirbsidiary, Chirasthaayee Saurya Limited, The tenure of the loan was 90 days: 
and it carries iriterset rate ranging from. 8% to 9.50% pa: 

Note -:12: Other financiel assets 

Particulars . 	As at March 31,2019 As at March 31. 2018 
Current .  Non-current Current Non-current 

SeOurity deposits 
Unsecuted. considered.good .237.95 '370.67 501.79 -364.09 
Unsecured, considered doubtful 440.06 37N4 396.68 3711 

678.01 408.61 898.47 401.93 
Less: Impairment loss-on security deposits (Refer Note (440.06) (37.84) (396.68) (37.84) 
12:1 below).  

237.95 370.67 501.79 364.09 
Unsecured, aonsidered good 

Unbilled revenue 2,552.04 - 1,367.03 - 
Interest accrued on inter corporate deposit (Refer Note 1.33 
36) 
'Interest accrued on bank deposits 3.31 2.46.  
Other receivables - 8.15 - 

Total .2,793:30 370.67 1,880.75 364.09 



Tata Power Solar Systems Limited 
Notes to the financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 

U40108KA1989PLC034989 

Note -12.1: Movement of lin airment loss on sec 
Particulars For the year 

ended March 31 
2019 

..-.... --.—
For the year 

ended March 
31,018 

Balance at beginning of the year 434.52 314,93 
Movement in impairment loss allowance on security deposits 
Less Reversal of allowance on colleCtion 

43.38 120.59 
- (1.00) 

Balance at end of the year 477.90 434.52 

Note -13: Current and noncurrent tax assets (net) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 
.—. .. —.... 

As at March 31,2018 
Current Non-current Current Noncument 

Unsecured, considered good 
Tax assets 
(Net of provisions of Rs. 4.349.30 Laths (as at March 
31. 2018 -Rs.4.349.30 Laths)) 

B.084.15 3,084.18 

Total 3,084.18 3.084.18 

Note. i4: Other current and nolt-cuthint assets 

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 
.............. 

M at March 31, 2018 
Current Non-current Current Non-current 

Unsecured, considered good 
Capital advances _ - 7.15

•  

Advances other than capital advances 
Advancei to suppliers 2959.12 1',995.40 - 
Advance to employee 2594 37.41 - 

Others 
Balances with government authorities 
(other than income takes) 

15.340.89 1.90 8,022.01 1.80 

Prepaid expenses 1.12,69 12.04 72.24 12.04 
Other rdceivables 166,11 . 155.13 - 

Total 18,604.75 13.84 10,285.19 80.99 
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Note - 15: Equity share capital 

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 	 As at March 31 2018 
No. of shorts Rs. In Laths No. of shams Rs. In Labs 

Authorised share capital: 
Cluny shares of Rs. 100/- each with voting rights 

issued, subscribed and fully paid: 
Equity shares of Rs. IOW- each with voting tights 

25,000,000 

22,977,567 

25000.00 

22.977.57 

25.000,000 

22.977,567 

25.00000 

22,977.57 

Total 22.977,667 22,977,57 22,977,567 22,977.57 

(I) Reconciliation of the number or shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the ye r 

Particulars Na. of shares Rs. In Lakin 
At Apnl I. 2017 22,977,567 22.977,57 
Changes donne the year - - 
At March 31,2018 22,977,567 22,97727 
Changes during the year .  
At March 31, 2019 22,977,567 22,977.57 

lid Detail of theinghts, preferences and restrictions attached ito equity shares 
Equity Shores' 

The Company has only one class of Equity Share, having a per value of Rs.100i.. Eat, bolder of equity shares Is entitled to one vole per share. In the event' of liquidation of the 
Company, the holders of the equity Shares will be entitled to receive any of tha remaining assets of the conany, alter dithribution Cr at preferential athount.The distntution Mg be in 
proportion to number-of equity shares held by the shareholders. The equity-shares issued on conversion of the preference spares have pari-paSsu rights to the earl*/ issued equity 
shares: 

(Ill) Details of shams held by the holding company, the ultimate holding company, their subsidiaries and associates: 

Particulars 	 No. of Shares 

Emilly shares with voting rights 

Met March 31, 2019 
The Tate Power Company Limited, the HolCEng Cottçatsy and ILS nominees 	 22.977,567 

As at March 31, 2018 
The Tata Power Company Limited. the Holding Company and Rs nominees 	 22,977,567 

(ivy Details of shares held by each shareholder fielding mom than 6% sham': 

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31.2010 
Number of shares 

held 
SS holding In that 
class of shares 

Number of shares 
held 

% holding in that 
class of shores 

Ego:4y shares with voting nghts 

The rats Power Company Limited, the Ho 	Company end its nominees 22.977.567 100% 22,977567 500% 

Note- 18: Other equity 

Particulars securities 
premium 

General reserve Capital 
redemption 

Reserve 

Deemed equity Retained earnings 
. nv. n Lawn, 

Total 

AS at Aprii 1.2017  14,587.09 4,73500 2295.00 1,261,87 (13,421.68) 9,457.28 
Profit for the year 	 . - 10043 71 10.04221 
Other comprehensive income! (expense) adsing from 
remeasurements of the defined benefit liabifides / (asset) (net 
of lax) 

- . - - 329.33 32923 

Mat March 31.2013 14,687.09 4,735.00 2.295.00 1,261.87 (3,050.14) 19,828.82 

Profit for the year • 9,04197 9,043.97 
Other comprehensive Income / (expense) ansing from .  
nameasummarts of the defined benefit liabilities / (asset) (net 
of tax) 

• (312.42) (312.42) 

Final cash dividend paw for the year ended March 31, 2018 (3,445.64) (3,446.64) 
(Rs 15 Per Mare) 	. 
Dividend distribution tax on final dividend _(708.47) (708 47) 
As at March 31 2019 14,587.09 4,735.00 2.295.00 1,281,87 1.525.30 24,405.28 

Nola- 16.1'; Securities Premium 

Amounts received on Issue of snares in excess of the par value has been daSsifred as secuMei premium 

Note- 15.2: General reserve 

The general resolve is used from time to time la transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes There is no policy of regular transfer_ As the general reserve Is created 
by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of othWcomprehensive income. items Included in the denend reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to 
Profit 01 loss. 

Note: 18.3 : Capital redemption Reserve 
..--""---i...--  iti/Crjeel es on purchase, sole. isSue or cancellation of the Companys. own equity min/month is baniferred to capithl redemption reserve. 

. 	. 	. 	. 	, 	 . 

- 	N c= 3 
0,.;°  ote - 

c

7 	lhe deem 	pertains to the accrued nthrestion the prefentince snares Waived by the preference shareholders. 
ed.equity 

Ca- Betagaligal 	earnings \\,....1wun • 
,N.  

\ 1.P 	 1?" 
N'1:.:, _ :-.1/4' _ ,...c.....<1,  

istnlsteed by the Company as cOvidend to its.equity sharenalders 
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Note -17: Short Term Borrowings 

Particulars At at 

March 31,2019 

—.. —a... 
As at 

March 31, 2018 
Secured borrowings' 

(a) 	Loans repayable on demand from banks 
Bank overdraft (Refer Note 17.1 below) 24,453.77 2.13 

Totalsocureci borrowings 24,453.77 2.13 

UnseCured borrowings 
Loans repayable on demand from banks 

Conimercial paper (Refer Note 17.2 below) 29,592.19 - 
Packing credit facility (Refer Note 17.3 below) 

Other loans 
6,000.00 

Buyers credit (Refer Note 17.4 below) 16.561.91 23,605.78 

From Related Parties (Refer Note 17.5 below and Note 36) 8501.00 _ 

Total unsecured borrowings 54,655.10 29,606.78 

Total 79,108.87 29,608.91 

,Note -17.1: Bank overdraft 
Secured through a part passu charge by hypothecation of storesaraw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods and book debts. 

Note. 17.2: Commercial paper 

The commercial paper has a maturity period of 60-9b days and is secured by CorporateGuarantee from Tata'Pewei ConiPany Limited. Theinteresicharge on the commerCial 
paper ranges between 7.42% id 7.98%. 

Note' 17.3: Packing 'credit facility 
Packing 'credit has been availed against the exgort order under the marking capital loan limits bearing an interest ranges betvieen 7.75% to 3.3% 

Note -17.4: Buyers Credit 
Buyers credit are short term facilities provided for 30 to 180 days. The interest 'chafe On the buyers credit ranges between .2.24% to 3..02%. 

Note -17:5: Loans from Related parties 
Short term borrowings from related parties includes Rs 8,501.00 Lakh from Walwhan RenewableEneMy Limited . The loans canyaverage interest rate of 7.37%. 

Note- 18: Trade payables 

Particulars As at March 31,2019 
.—.... --- 

As at March 31,2018 
Currant Noncurrent Current Non-current. 

Trade payable for goods and services 

- Teta' outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small 
enterprise (Refer Note 32) 
- Total Outstanding dues of dreditarsether than micro 
enterprise and small enterprise 

102.75 

'85,508.70 

- 

58,952.97 

Total 86,609.06. .58,952:97 - 
The average credit period for purchase Of certain goods from is 30 to 90 days. No interest is charged on trade payables; 

T  -- 	
, . 
N  --r --:-.•••,-N /6„, &  , s,, \  
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Note - 19: Other Financial Liabilities 

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 
.— ... —....— 

As at March 31,2018 
Current Non-current Current Non-current 

Other financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 

(a) 	Interest atcrued (Refer Note19.1 below) 91.08 96.15 
(s) 	Interest on MSS/6 (Refer Note 32) 0.47 - 

Creditors for capital supplies/Services 1.011/5 - 1.337.81 
Trade / Security deposits received 63.75 - 8524 

1,167.05 - 1,519.20 

Other financial liabilities measured at fair value 
Derivative financial instruments carried at fair value 1256.79 284.33 

12513.79 284.33 - 
Total 2,525.84 1,803.53 

Note - 19.1: Interest accrued 
The Interest accrued includes interest accrued but not-due on borrowings amounting to Rs. 91.08 Lakhs (As et March 1, 2018 - Rs. 06.15 Lakhs). Refer Note 
17.3, Note 17.4 and Note 17.5 for the terms of the Interest rate on the borrowings. 

Soto - 20: Current and non-current tax liabilities (net) 

Particulars As at march 31,2019 As at March 31, 2018 
Current Non-current Current Non-current 

Income tax payable 
(Net of advance tax of Rs.12.698 63 Lakin (As at March 31, 2018- Rs, 
9,095.90 Lakhs)) 

42.62 373.55 427.10 373.55 
- 

Total 42.62 373.55 427.10 373.65 

Note - 21: Previsions 

Accounting Polio/ 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal oCconstructive) is a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
'economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made on the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a 
provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract the reimbursement Is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually 
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money s materiel, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reftects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When 
discounting is used, the ho-ease in the provision due to the passage of time Is recognised as a finance cost. 

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when theexpecied benefits to be denied by the Company from a contract are loser than the unavoidable cost of meeting its' 
'obligations under the contract The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the-expected cost of terminating the contract and theexpected net cost of 
continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impaimient loss on the assets assadated with that contract. 

A contingent liability is a possible Obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the.occurrence 'or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain 
future events beyond the control of 'the Company or a present obligation that is nnt rersigntted because it is not probable that an outflow of resources wilt be required to settle 
the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The 
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses Its existence In the financial statements. 

Provisions and contingent liability are reviewed at each balance sheet 

Provision for warrant 
Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under local sale of-goods legislation are recogniseriat thedate of sale of the relevant products, et the management's 
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Company's obligation. These ettirnates are established using historical information on the nature, freqUency and average 
cost of warranty claims and management estimates regarding possible Mute incidence based on corrective actions on product failures. The timing of outflows will vary as and 
When-warranty daini witarise. 
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Particulars As at March 31,2019 As at March 31, 2018. 
Current Non-current Current Non-current 

(a) 	Provision for employee benefits 
Compensated absences (Refer Note 21.2) 2916 1,054.78 38.93 1,052.90 
Gratuity (Refer Note 21.2) 900 1,927.95 .. 1,291.52 
Post Employee Benefits (Refer Note 21.2) 3.31 - 2.02 
Other defined benefit plan (Refer Note 21.2) 40.72 357,30 40.69 365.49 
Other employee benefits (Refer Note 21.2) 

(b), 	Other Provisions 

ishiso 105.92 48.47 164.80 

Warranty (Refer Note 21:1 below) 1.774.75 2.089.89 1,766.92 1,313.35 
Rectification work (Refer Note 21.1 below) '1,339,83 .2432 25 - 
Provision for forseeable losses (Refer Note 21.1 below) 1.353.29 2.281.16 - 

Total 4,565.46 5,659.15 6,608.42 4,191.18 

Note -21.1: Provision (or warm 

Particulars As at 
March 31,2019 
(Rs. in Lakin) 

Ma 
March 31 
(Rs.-in Lakhs) 

2018 

Rectification 
work 

Warranty 
Provision 

Rectification work Warranty 
Provision 

Balance as at beginning of the year 
Provision made during the year 
Amounts inalmsdfulithed duping the year 
Balance as at the end of the year 

3,080.27 
1,487:65 
(703.26) 

3,864.64 

2,432.25 
- 

(1,092,62) 

1339.63 

2,902.18 
1.365.39 

(1,187.30) 

3,080.27 

.3,191.91 
178.64 

(038,30) 
2,432.25 

Na. 1,144,1 2018:5 Lakhs(March3l, 	Rs. 1,766:92 Lalchs). The warranty expenditure is expected 
to be incurred over the warranty rife of the produttsS6 Contracted, Which Varlet from '10 to 25 years 

The provision for Warranty claims represents the.prthent value of the managements best estimate of the future outflow of econornicbeithfits that wit be required under the 
Company's obligations for wernrintles under sales of goods legislation: The estimate has been made on the beSitrof historical warranty trends and may vary as..a result of nem, 
materials, altered manufacturing processes or other eventtraffecting product quality. 

The provision for rectification mirk relates to the estimated cost of work agreedloee carried °Prior the rectlfitation Of golds supplied to the customers. The amount is 
anticipated to be spent in the year 2019-20. These amounts have not been diseciunted for the purposes of measuring theprovistoo for rectification work, because the effect Is 
not material. 

Provision tor forseeathe loss represents loss provided for onerous contracts. 



Iota Power Solar Systems Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 
CIN: U40105KA1989M-0034989 

NOM - 21.2: Employee benefit plan 
Refer note 25 as regards Deity On employee benefits 

(I) Defined Contribution plan 

The Company makes provident fund and superannuation fund canthbuten which are defined contribution olans, for qualifying employees. Under the schemes. the Company Is required to Contribute a 
specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits The Company =tweed Rs.515.99 laths (for the ynr ended Mardi 31. 2018 - Re427.88 Lakes) for Provident Fund contributions. Rs. 
88.06 Laths (year ended Mardi 31, 2018 - Rs 86.46 Lakin) for Starannualion Fund conthbutions, included as a part ef conifibtnion to provident fund end other funds in Note 25 EMPloYelte Benefit 
Expenses. The Company recognised Rs. 047 Lakhe (for the year ended March 31.2018 - Rs.132 laths) for Employee State Insurance &tome contributions, included as a pin of staff etetfam in Note 
25 Employees Benefit Expenses, The contributors payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified In the rules of the schemes. 

fill Defined benefit pfarts 
The Company otters the following employee defined benefit schemes to its empfoyeestwomployees: 
I. Gratuity (inciuded as a part of oweibution to provident NW and other fund In Note 25 Employees Benefit Expense) 

Pqnsion (post Mtirement benefits, to the erstwhile managing director (intluded as a part of Salary and Wages id Note 25 Employees Benefits Expense) 
Post-Employmem Medical Benefits (,post-employment health care benefits to superanuothel emPlOYees in Note 25 Employees Benefits Expense) 
'Ex•Gratia Death Benefit (granting es-gratis in cate of death during service in Note 25 Employees Benefits Expense) 
Retirement Gift (granting a pre-determined sum as retirement gift on superannuation of an employee in Not 25 Employees Benefits Expense) 

investment filth- 
The present value of defined benefit plan liability is caloulatml using a discount rate which is determined by references, the premaing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance 
sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations, 

Interest Mak- 
A decrease at the yield of Indian government eel:Odds will increase the 

Longevity Risk 

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants bothduring and after their employment Art increase in the fife 
expectancy of the plan parttipain will increase the pian's liability. 

Salary Rite' 
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the More swedes In particular, there it a risk tor the Company tilM any adverse Betel growth can Mouth an incest of providing these benefits to employees In futons. aSe 

In respect of the plan. Me most recent actuarial Valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were Canted out as al March 31.2019 by prolong:mat actuary. The 
present volue-of the defined benefit obligation, and the related arrant sen4ce cost end paid service oast, were Measured using the projected unit cost credit method, 

The princIpal assumptions Used foq'tyteouneoeee • ._.. 
Particulars 

. . -. 
Valuation as at 

March 31, 2019 	l 	March 31,2018 
Gratuity. compensated leave absences anti.pension: 
Discount rate (p.a.) 7.46% 7.70% 
Expected fete of salary increase (p.a.) Management -7% Management .7% 

Non Management - 5% Non Management .5% 
Attrition (p.a.) 

Management 21.44 years. Management 21-44 mare 
2.5% 2.5% 

45 years and above. 1% 45 years and above- 1% 
NonManagement: 9.5% Non Management 0.5% 

Expected rent on plan assets (p.a,) 7.40% 7.70% 
pension increase rate Ma.) 5% 5% 
Mortality tables Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives 

Mortardy(05.081Uft Table Mortality (06-08) Lit Table 
Mortality in retirement Published Tables Published Tables 

PA (90) PA (90) 

Wm discount rate is bean On the pmealling market wilds of Indian Government Securities as at balance sheet dale for dm estimated term of the oblig ton. 

The estimates of future salary Increases considered takes We account the inflatioit !oniony promotion and other relevant factors_ 

In order lo proteci the wont and optimize returns yethinacceptable risk parameters, the plan assets are maintained with an Meurer managed fund and is Weld 

Amounts me Mead Instatement of erofr and loss In macoat of these deem,d baseness Sane,,., as MaItus,s'  
Ps,lictdans 

-. 	.-.. -. 
Gratuity 

Ns. In LAMAS 
Pension 

For the year ended 
March 31,2015 

For the year ended 
March 31.2018 

For the year ended 
Match 31, 2019 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 Current Service Cost 

Net Internet expense 
145.51 
96.83 

16869 
111.22 2922 

• 
33 48 

Components of defined benefit costs recognised la profit or lose 242.44 280.11 29.22 33,48 

Remaaeuren,ent on the net defined  
Particulars Gratuity 

Its. le Liana 
Pension 

For Me year ended 
March 31.2019 

For the year ended 
March 11, 2018 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2010 

For the year ended 
March 31.3018 

Return on the net defined benefit liability . 
ACtuarial (ninsthosses at 	from changes in demographic assumptions - . - 
Actuanal (gainsittosseS ening from Changes in financial assumptions 7337 (426.91) 726 (521) 
Actuarial (gains)tlosses arising from experience assumptions 301,51 (8.17) (3321 (52.61) Actual return less interest on plan assets 11,85 (0.73) 
Components of defined bemire COSIS reCOarthied in other comprehoneivo Income 386.73 1437.81) 3.94 (57.82) Total 629.17 (157.70). 	 33.16 (24.34) 

The current service coat atedirte net interest expense for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits immense' Me item tithe statement of profit and loss 

The remeasurernent of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprnhensive income, 

/<;/:97(A, 

d-3.-: Bengaiuru 
r--- 
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The amount included in the balance sheet a 

Particulars Gnstully 
us in Leen, 

Pension 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2019 
For ow year ended 

March 31,2018 
For an year ended 

Marsh 31,2011 
For the year ended 

March 31.1018 
Present Mu/ al funded defined benefit otegaban 1,957.57 1 322,06 391.36 40076 

30 54 
Fth• Mtn of plan eases (20.62) 
Funded status 1,938 95 1,29132 (391.36) (403 76) 
Net (Oa ay/recognised hi balance sheet 11,938.951 (1,291-52) 1311.261 (400781 Current (liability) 19.00) (10.33) (40381 
Non-cmyetdglabfaly) (1,927.1151.  11,231,52) (WOW) 
Estimated amount of contribution In the trittnedlata next year 940 

1360.37) 

Mcwertsents In the present value of the defined betie)?. obflga110,Ia are as follows. 

Particulars Gratuity 
Ica in Liens 

Pension 
For the year ended 

Match 31. 2019 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2018 
For the year ended 

March 31,2019 
For the year ended 

March 31,2019 
Opening defined benefit oblertions 1,322.06 1.53832 400.76 467.68 Currern service oast 145 63 18689 • htermICost 99.16 113 06 2922 33 47 Awes:Ions (erentrt)fcast 84.35 41.311 - Actuarial (Gains)tosses arising tram changes in demographic emumptions (34.75) 301.61 • .. 
Aeteradal (GaMsylones ansing from creases St Anemia! assumptirs 1394,161 (332) (521) 
Actmulal (dairts)losses arising from emeirence ashreptiord 73.37 (317) 7.26 45201) Past Service Cost , Include; tassel 4903121 on Ourlaiilmal 
Benefits paid directly by M Company (6 03) (14.77) 

' 
(4255) (4256) Benefits paid tern Men amt. (52.48) (4306) 

Closing defined benefit Mainallon 1,957.57 1,322.08 391.38 400.77 

Met/metes In the fah value of elm elan assets are as  
Particulars Gratuity 

Na. M Liken 
Pension 

For Mc year ended 
Mirth 31,2019 

For the year ended 
March 31,2018 

For the year ended 
March 31. 2018 

Fee die year ended 
March 31, 2018 

°Penn° ter man of pen assets 30.54 21.03 
Wines: Marne 	. 2.34 1.84 
Remeasurement grimfgestieSt 

 
Actual risen on Man assets less Interest cm plan assets (3315) 073 
Ccanbufkm nom the employer '02.07 50 00 
Cone:Nam from pfan partiement 

- 
Benefits old (62.48) (4307) 
Closing fair nhe of man assets 20.62 30.54 - • 

The we)ghied average duniton of Me Deng otansten as al Mirth 31. 20191s 8 1 years 

Sensitivity Analyab 
The tame< obligation resutts at 's oensirm scheme are pankolarly senerne to discount rile, letmerIty rult end pension Increases. if the plan Melton de Pte4loraCth13a,nse1 on domrnencement 
of pension. 

The togomng table summotizes the impact in percentage terms an Me mooned definad omega obirga6on at Se end or =Wog penal teeing crt amount changes in these tree key manners: 

Pena:tears March 31, 2019 March 31,2018 
Discount rate 
Effect 	ub on 060 d 	te 0.5% litevie In DiscouneRate (11.871 (12,52) 
Effect an 0131:20ue 0) 0.5% dcerease in Discount Rea 12.66 .13.26 
Pension inmate rate 
Effect on DEID duo to 0.5% tnctease MPension Eteattlites Rae .12.09 12.71 
Eden an 0I30 due el 0.5% decease In Pension E3Calatiort Rate 11E531 (12.11) 
Ute expectancy 
Erect on DE10 due to 1 mar int:ream% longed17 2507 '2435 
Effect on MO due to 1 year decrease In tongoNly (2500) (24 AM 

Those senstivIlles have been adoilaied le show me movement in defined benefit Menton n solemn and enuring Mere am no other clumgeiln 
haw teen no cturees from the ethane period, in the methods and assumptions used In prepanng the sansitMty analysed 

The eueiticd ri laterite 'analysis of undlscounied defter; benefit obligation le is follows: 

i eon 	's ales acco•Altegdate..Trtere 

Particulars Gratuity 
Rs. In Lathe 

Pcnshan 
For the releancled 

March 31, 2019 
For Ihe year ended 

Match 31, 2018 
For the year ended 

March 31,2019 
For the year ended 
.Mareh 31. 2018 Withal 1 year 

.3069 2309 41.85 41.92 BehMen 1.2 KarS 6154 2321 42.26 42.49 &Meer 2 -1 yeats 8620 44.90 4245 42.87 Beheent3 -4 years 
4-s 

9884 71 99 .42,4's 43.02 Between 	mans '87.81 67.01 42 10 42.93 Beyond 5 yen* 1,000.01 .657.34 195.90 203.66 

Movement of Provision of Compensated Loan Absences 

Particulate Mirth 31, 2019 
nu in iaans 

March 31, 2018 
Otereig balance 1.091.83 923.80 
Add: erases for the year 214.61 410.22 
lass: Payment made timing the par (192.50) (242.1E1) 
Closing Balance 1,113.34 1,0E1113 
Expanse recognised in Statement a Profit erul Loss 214.61 410.22 
Cermet portion of provision balance 	 . 29.16 31.93 
Won- current portion of provision Milan= • 1,084.71 1,052.90 
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Note • 22: Other current and non-current liabilities 

Particulars Mat March 31,2019 Mat March 31, 2018 
Current Noncurrent Currant Non-current 

Advances received from customers 4,816.24 - 4.868.03 
Government grant (Refer Note 22.1 below) - 1.126.21 1,102.54 
Statutory dues (other than income taxes) 468.99 - 168.86 
Income received in advance (unearned revenue) 21,425.28 - 10,476.69 - 
Other liabilities 6.79 - 5.39 

Total 26,717.30 1,126.21 15,718.97 1,102.54 

Note - 22.1: Government grant 

Accounting Policy 
Government grants are not recagnised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company wit comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants-will be 
received. 

Government granis are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the CornpanytekogniSes as expenses the related costs for which the 
grants are intended to compensate. 

Specifically, government grants- whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase. construct or otherefiteacguire non-current assets are recognised as deferred 
revenue In the consolidated balance sheet and transferred to profit or loss on e- systematic and rational basis over the-useful lives of the related assets.' 

'Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already inCurred or for the purpose of giving irninediate financial support to the Company 
-with no future related costs are'recognised In profit or lost in the period in which they become receivable. 

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is-seated as a government grant. measured' as the difference between proceeds received and the fair 
value of the loan based on prevailing market-interest rates. 

Movement in Government Grant 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2019 

As at March 31. 2018 

Balance at beginning of the year 1.102.54 2,795.59 
Add: Received during the year 23.67 15.67 
Less: Released to the statement of profit and loss - (i,708.72) 
Balance at end of the year 1,126.21 1,102.54 

The Company has received government grants in the form of import duty exemption on purchase of capital goods, to be used for production of items for exports, based on 
the terms of the Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) scheme. The Company recognises an income from such grants based on meeting the export obligations as 
Specified under the EPCG scheme, 

Based on the guidance received from the Company's professional consultant on the exports achieved till Maith 31,2019. the Company has recognisedthe income, to the 
proportionate extent of export obligations met. 
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Note - 23: Revenue from operations 

Accounting Policy 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at'an amount 
that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has 
concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangemnets because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to 
the customer. 

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery 
of the goods. 

Revenues from turnkey contracts, which are generally time bound fixed price contracts, are recognised over the life of the Contract using the 
proportionate completion method, with contract costs determining the degree of completion. Foreseeable losses on suah contracts are 
recognised when probable. 

Delayed payment- charges and interest on delayed payments leviable as Per the 'relevant contracts are recognised on actual realisation or 
accrued based on an assessment of certainty of realitatIon supported by either an acknowledgement from.-customers or on receipt of 
favourable order from regulator/ authorities. 

Revenue on-installation and commissioning contracts are recognited as per the terms of contract. 

Revenues from maintenance-contracts are recognised pro-rata over the period of the 	 

'Refer Note 22.1-as regards policy on government grant. 

Re. In Lakhs 
Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2019 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2018 

(a) 	Revenue from sale of goods and services 311.261.90 270,459.91 
Revenue from rendering of maintenance services 
Other operating revenue 

- Income from government grant (Refer Note 22.1) 

5,001.16 

- 

2304.30 

1,708.72 
- gale Of scrap 357.46 195.43 
- Sale of scrips for duty exemption 232.77 227_61 
- Miscellaneous Revenue 657.69 - 

Total 317,630.98 274,895.97 

The following table' pruvidus information about the company's revenue from Contracts arith cuatoiners: 

Rs. In Laths 
Particulars For the year ended 

March 31,2019 
For the year ended 

March 31,2018 

Timing of revenue recognition (excluding other operating revenue) 

Goods tranifeired at a pointin time 19.67164 34,341.04 
Services transferred over time 296,611,42 238,423.17 

Total 316,283.06 272,764.21 

India 305.90061 251,845.26 
Outside India 10.37425. 20,918.95 

Total P316,283.05 272,764.21 
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The thllowing table provides information about contract assets and contract liabilities from contract with customers: 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2019 

.._... 	_ ...- 
For the year ended 

March 31,2018 
Contract assets and liabilities as at April 1, (Occluding trade receivables and 
trade payables) 

Advance from customers:as arApril 1, 44868.03 2.891.50 
Unbilled revenue as at April 1. 1,367.03 3;275.89 
Unea rned revenue as at Aptil 1, 10,476.69 11.680,76 

Revenue recognsied during the year from contracts 	 [ 291.136.94 236.17989 - 
Revenue recognsied during the year that was included in the 'Contract laibray at 10,476.69 11,580.76 
April I. (excluding advance from customers) 

Contract besets and liabilities as at March 31, (excluding trade receivables 
and trade payables).  

Advance from customers as at March 31. 4.816.21 4,868,03 
Uhbilled revenue.as  at March 31, 2:552.04 1.367.93 
Unearned revenue as at March.31, .21,425.28 10,476.69 

Note: Contract asset is the right ti) consideration in eirchange for goods or. services transferred to the customer. Contraer, liabaity lathe 
entity's obligation to transfer goods or serviceato a customer for which the entity has received considerationifrornithe custemenin adinance. 
Contract assets are transferred td receivables when the rights became unconditional arid contract liabilities are reangnaad asiend when the 
perfomthnce obligation is satisfied. 



rats Pow& Solar Systerna Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 
CIN: U40106KA1989PLC034989 

Note -24 Other Income 

Accounting Policy 

Interest Income 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is prebable that the econonniC benefits will How to the Company and the amount 
of income can be Measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective 
interest rate applicaNa which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset 
to that asses net carrying amount on initial Meng nition. 

Divklendc 

Dividend income is recognised when the Companyi right to receive the Payment is established, wheal is generally When shareholders 
approvethe dividend. 

Rs in Lakhs 
Particulars For the year ended 

March 31.2019 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2018 
Interest income (Refer Note (i) below) 	, 
Other non-operating income (net of expenses directly antibutable to 
sucfrincome) (Refer Note (V) below) 

(a) 	Profit from Sale' iif Ihvestments (Net) 

32.38 
5.30 

56.36 

122.73 
32_59 

52.80 
Net loss i (gain).on foreign currency transactions 2,163.38 
other gains-(Refer Note (iii) below) - 62,36 

Total. 2267.42 270.48 

Notes 
10 	Interestincomo comprises:' 

intereat on Inter Corporate DePogits (ReferNote 36) -15.09 92.53 
Interest from banks On depotita .0.95 .16.513 
Interest on delays in Cuitomer payments bAs.  
Interest on eleatridhudeposits -15.32 13.23 
Other Interest 0.17 0.39 

Total '32.38 122,73 
Oh 	Other non-operating Income (net of expenses directly 

attribUtable to such Income) : 
Insurance Income - 30.52 
Miscellaneoue Inccithe 5.30 2.07 

Total 5.30 32.69 
(iii) 	Profit from sale/ falr valuation of Investments (Net) 

Ciireentinvestmehts 5036 52.80 

Total 56.36. 62.80 
fivf 	Other gains 

Gain on disposal Of properly, plant and equipment 62.36. 
Total 62.36 



lath Power Solar Systems Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2019 
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Note -25 Employee benefits expenses 

Accounting Policy 

Retirement and other employee benefits  

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund, pension fund and superannuation fund are defined contribution scheme. The Company has 
no obligation, other than the contribution payable. The Company recognizes contribution payable to provident fund, pension fund and 
superannuation fund as expenditure when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service 
received before the balance sheet reporting date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a 
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. lithe contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before 
the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as. an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to. for example, a reduction in 
future payment or a cash refund. 

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit The Company 
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has 
accumulated at the reporting date. 

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carded forward beyond twelve months. as long-tern, employee benefit for 
measurement purposes.- Such long-term crinthensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit 
credit method at the year-end. 

The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance Sheet, to the extent it does not have an entionditional right to defer its 
settlement for twelve months after the reporting date. 

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method using.acttiarial valuation to 
be carded but at each balance Sheet date. 

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans to recognise the 
'obligation on a net basis. 

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset cedling. excluding amounts included in-net interest en the 
net defined benefit liability and the rettim on plan assets (excluding amounts included In net interest on the net defined benefilliability), are-
recognised- immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or emelt to retained earnings through OCI in the period" n which they 
occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or lost in subsequent periods. 

Past service costs ate recognised In profit-or loss on the earlier of: 
The date of the plan amendment Or curtagment, -and 
The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount (ale to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following 
changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the staternent of profit and loss: 

Service costs.comprising.cunent service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on 'curtailments and non-rthitine settlements; and 
Net interest expense or income, 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31.2019 

IN4. II LaIlli 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Salaries-and wages 
Contribution- to provident and other funds (Refer Note 21.2) 
Staff welfare expenses 

9,297.88 
881.85 
825.25 

9,539,73—  
808.18 

1,298.69 
Total 11,004.98 11,646.60 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 
CM: U40106KA1989P5.0034989 

Note -26 Finance costs 

Accounting Policy 

Borrowho costs  

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, Construction or production of qualifying assets. which are assets that necessarily take 
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are.added to the cost of those assets, until such time as-the assets are 
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific bOrrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from 
the borrowing costs eligible for Capitalisation. 

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are Mound. 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 312019 

ria. in uamus 
For the year ended 

March 31.2018 

Interest expense 
Interest on bank overdraft, related party ham:wings and other 
borrowings 

3.382.69 2.705.73 

IntereSt on delayed remittance of incothe taxes, 
Other borrowing costs 

15.29 ,34.49 

Bank charges 38.37 467.87 
Other finance costa i 2.448.96 

Total 3,436.35 5,657.05 

Note-fl: Depreciation and ainortisatlein expenses 

Refer Note 4 and Note 5 as regards policy on property, plant and eduipnient and-intangible assets. 

Particulars- For the year ended 
March 31, 2019 

ram. HI Lamm 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2018 
Depreciation of Property. Plant and equipment (Refer Note 4) 
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 5) 

7,541,11 
175.49 

7.271.21 
130.39 

Total 7,716.60 7.401.80 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 
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Note -28 Other expenses 
Rs in Lakhs 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2019 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Stores and spares consumed 688,69 1,184.19 
Effluent processing charges 209.96 470.47 
POwer, fuel, water & oil consumed 1,581.50 1,911.34 
Freight and handling charges 2,116.69 3762.61 
Rent including lease rentals (Refer Note 35) 1,392.86 916.76 
Repairs and maintenance - Buildings 37.87 62.64 
Repairs and maintenance - Machinery 708.47 1,18620 
Repairs and maintenance - Others 171.42 145 42 
Rates and taxes 265.33 171.23 
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (CSR) under 
section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

137.72 .. 

Insurance charges 263.55 348.39 
Commission, discounts and rebates 38884 963.80 
Impairment of financial assets (Refer Note 28.3 below) 2.928.32 903.14 
Net loss! (gain) on foreign currency transactions 876.83 

Loss on fixed assets written off 2.18 - 
Provision for warranty 1,487.65 1.365.39 
Legal and other professional costs (Refer Note 28.1 below) 1,306.26 1,144.93 
Advertilement, promotion ahd Selling expenses 214.68 377.86 
Travelling expenses 1,078.54 1,442.64 
Cost of service-outsourced 5,750.23 3,655.93 
Director fees .3.90 ' 	 10.84 
Tata brand equity 659.60 1,261.94 
Other general expenses 2.365.05 1.169.85 

Total 23,758.51 23.331.40 

Note-25.1:Payment to auditors included in legal and other professional costs 
excludinn applicable taxes 

	
k s 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31 2019 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018" 

For audit 21.80 22.80 
For taxes and other services 3.00 3.00 

(0) For other services 5.00 - 
(d) For reimbursement of expenses 4,77 3.47 
Total 34.57 29.27 
*Includes Rs. 6 Lakhs paid to erstwhile auditors of the Company during the year ended March 31, 2018. 

Note-28.2: Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 
Rs. in Lakhs 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31 2019 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019 

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 137.72 . 

Total 137.72 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31 2019 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Amount spent during the year on. In cash/bank In cash/bank 
(i) Construction / Acquisition of any asset 
(in On purposes other than (i) above 137.72 Nil 

Includes Rs. 137.00 lakhs contributed to Tate Power Community Development Trust 

Note . 28.3: Impairment losses on financial assets and reversal of impairment on financial assets 
Rs. in Lakhs 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2019 

For the year ended 
hlarch 31,2618 

Impairment loss allowance on trade receivables (Refer Note 9 13 
itiiMept loss allowance on deposits (Refer Note 12.1) 
y, )-Ic rIS.s. 

	

-Th5 	•i /Reverse 	' 	annent losses on deposits (Refer Note 12.1) 

4.344.94 
43,38 

2,445.61 
120.59 

4,388.32 2,566:40 
(1.00) 

('I.662.26) ••Re)(erpa 	airment losses on trade receivables (Refer Note 9.1)...-- . 
' TO6if 

 

.: ,1*--. 	(1,460.00) ,e'er
" 
 
al 

.--,cV `,,, 	2,928.32 903.14 
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GIN: U401061tA1989PLC034989 

Note -29 Income Tax 

ACcountinq Policy 

Current income tax 

Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit 
differs from net profit as reported in the statement of profit and loss beCause it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or 
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's liability for current tax is 
calculated using the tax rates and tax laws that -have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit-or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive 
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised In correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject 
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

Deferred tax  
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities In the 
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in (he computation of the taxable profit and is-accounted for using the balance 
sheet liability model. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised For-alt the taxable temporary differences. In contrast deferred assets are 
only recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences Can be 
utilised.. 

Deferred incbmth tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax 
losses, to the extent that it is probable.that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and-the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. 

The carrying amount Of deferred income tax assets Is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to-allow all or part Of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or 
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or toss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in 
equity). Deferred lax items are recognised in ciorrelation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

Defected tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against cone nttax 
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority: 

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax NAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India. which is likely to give future 
economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability, Accordingly, MAT Is 'recognized as deferred tax asset 
in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and It is probable that the future economichenefit associated with the asset 
will be realized. 

Particulars 
Forth, year ended 

March 31, 2019 

For the year 
ended 

March 31 2018 
Current tax 
In respeat of the current year 

Deferred tax 
In respect of the current year 

3.304.06 2.88040 

Total income tax expense recognised In the curtent year 3.304.06 2,880.40 



Tab Power Solar Systems Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 
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The Income tax ex ense for the year Ca 
	

• „ 
Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2019 
For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2018 

Profit before tax 12348.03 12.922e1 

Income tax expense calculated at 34.94% (2017-2018: 30.9%) 4,314.90 3,993.09 
Effect of income that is exempt fromMaation - - 
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 4,603.98 2,988.33 
Effect of cOncessions (other allowances) 
Effect of 	tax losses 

(1,458.50) (1,684.65) 
(604.73) (5,296.77) unused 	and tax offsets not recognised as deferred tax assets 

Unrecognized tax credit (MAT) utilised during the current year (3,551.59) 
Others (Effect Of Minimum Alternate Tax) - 2.880.40 
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 3,304.06 2,880.40 

The tax rate used for the 2018-2019 and 2017-201e reConciliations above is the-corporate tax rate of 34.94% as ttzmover more than 
Rs 25,000 lakhs) and 30.90% payable by- corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law. However as the 
Company has significant brought fonivatd lax losses and unabsorbed depreciation.. 

Incarnates reco nited direct!y ri other coin reh n lv 
Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2919 

..-......--
For the year 

ended 
March 31,2018 

Current tax 
Effect of Minimum Alternate Tax 

Deferred tax 
Arising on income and expenses recognised in Other comprehensive income 

(85.82) 

- 

165.91 

Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive Income (85.82) 165.91 

Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other comprehensive Income into: For the year ended 
March31, 2019 

For the year 
.ended, 

March 31, 2018 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Items that may be reclassified to profit or toss 

(85.82) 
- 

165,91 

485.82) 165.91 
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Note • 30: Deferred tax balance 

The following is the analysis of deferred tax asseist(liabilities) presented in the balance sheet: 
Rs. in Lakhs 

Particulars Mat 
Marsh 31, 2019 

As at 
March 31,2018 

Deferred tax assets 
Deferred tax liabilities 

- 

In 
2018-19 Opening balance Recognised in 

profit or loss 
Recognised in 

other 
comprehensive 

income 

Recognised 
directly in 

equity 

Closing 
Balance 

Deferred tax assets( (liabilities) In relation to: 
Difference in the written down valuetf fixed assets (3.299 a 7) 2,145.11 - (1,154.06) 
Provisions Mr Etnployee benefits 1,029.19 368.16 (139.15) 1,25811 
Provisicnt for doubtful debts and advances 1593.80 1.023.27 3,617.07 
Provision for Warranty 951.80 274.09 . 1,225.89 
Adjustment far other disallowances 704.88 .(324.23) - 380:65 
Sub-Total 1,980.50 3,48641 (139.15) • 9,327.76 
Unabsorbed tax loss and depreciation 1.21116 (1,211.26) - - 
Minimum Alternate TA Credit 6.707.43 (3,551.59) - 0,155.84 
Less' Adjustments (Refer Note below) (9,899.19) 1,276.45 139.15 (8,483.60) 
Not Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liability) - • - 

Re. in Lakin 
2017-18 Opening balance Recognised in 

profit or loss 
Recognised in 

other 
comprehensive 

Income 

Recognised 
directly In 

equity 

Closing 
Balance 

Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) in relation to: 
Difference in the written down value of fixed assets (5,956.10) 2.638.93 .. (3.299.17) 
Provisions for Employee benefits 998.38 (122.22) 150.03-  - 	1,029.19 
Provisions for doubtful debts and advances 2.314.73 '279.07 - 2.593.80 
Provision for Warranty 896.77 55.03 - 951.80 
Adjustment for other disallowances 704.88 - 704.88 
Sub-Total (1.748.2.5) 3,573.69 15103 • 1,980.90 
Unabsorbed tax loss and depreciation 6,508.03 (5,296.77) - 1,211.26 
Minimum Alternate Tax Credit 3,661.12 2,880.40 165.91 6,707.40 
'Less: Adjustments (Refer Note below) (9,422.93) (1,157.32) (318,94) - (4,89919) 
Net Deferred Tax Asset! (Liability) - - - - 

The Company is subject In Minimum Alternate Tax (WM') on incomes earned from operations. The excess tax paid under these MAT provisions 
over and above the normal tax liabiity can be carried forward and set off against future tax liabilities under normal tax provisions Over a period of 15 
years. Such credit available hat been Conaidered to represent a deferred tax credit in the above table. 

The Company has deferred tax assets relating to Payment of MAT (explained above) provision for doubtful debts and advances, employee benefits 
and certain other temporary differences which is partially offset by difference in the written down value of property, plant and equipment. In' assessing 
the realization of deferred tax assets, the likelihood of whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the defenial tax assets WI not be 
realized must be considered. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is qependent on the generation of future taxable. income during the 
'periods in which temporary difference become deductible. As the Company is in the process of establishing a trend of taxable profits and considering 
the absence of certainty of future taxable profits, the Company has not recognised deferred tax asset of Rs.8,483.60 Lakhs and Rs. 9,899.19 Leith, 
-as ctif March 31. 2019 and March 31, 2018. 
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Note -31: Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for) 

CoMmitments 
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2019 	: 

__— 
As.at 

March 31, 2018 
Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided 
Property, plant and equipment 

Other cemmitmentS: 

158.25 591339 

Vendor purchase commitments 23.767.86 17,653.42 
Export Commitments pertaining to EPCG benefits, considered as Government Grants that are 7,016.73 6,993.06 

(ii) The Company has commited to provide future post sale services for periods extending from 1 to 18,66520 13.916.73 
(Hi) Bank guarantees provided to Customs authorities for imports - 1-363.62 

(II) Contingent Liabilities 

Refer Note 21 as regards potty on provision and contingent liabilities. 

Particulars As at 
March 31,2019 

--. — ---
As at 

March 31, 2018 

(a) Claims against the CoMpany not acknowledged as debts, in the nature of: 
income Tax demands, including penalty and interest due Up to date of the order. 
These 

2,677.26 2,677.28' 
claims relate to demands Made significaMy pertaining to transfer pricing and othe 

, adjustments, which are being contested by the Company. These cases are pending at venous 
forums with the respective authorities. Outflows. I' any; arising. out of the claims would depend 
upon the outcome of the decision of the appellate authority and the Company's light for future 
appeals before.judiciary. No reimbursements are expected, 

Sales taxend VAT demands, including penalty and interest due' up to the date of the ordet. 

-These claims relate to demands arising.from difference in values of stock transfer, F-Forms 
and instances of non-filing of returns b9 vendors. 

130.27 130.27 

-These claims relates to demands arising from sale of Solar PV Module, Module Structure. 7,351.69 .. 
Cable,' Battery, Submersible Pumps. Motor Controller, Hardware etc. as 'Solar Pumpin0 System' 
as an exempt goods. As per Authority in the schedules appended to-Rajasthan VAT Act, there is 
no entry for 'Solar Pumping System' and hence the same is subjected to Item-wise duty 
structure. 

There ere numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement dated 28th February. 2019 on Provident Fund 0,9.  
on the inclusion of allowances for the purpose of PF contribution as Well as its applicability of effective date. The Company is consulting Legit 
counsel for further clarity. The impact of the settle is-currenttly not ascertainable. 
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Note -32: Disclosures required under section 22 0! the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

Particulars Mat 
March 31, 2019 

Mat 
March 31,2018 

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as et the end of 
aecounting year 

Interest due thereon. rernaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the 
atcounting year 

102.75 

0.47 

- 

- 

(80 The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, - 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006(27 of 20118), along with 
the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond appointed day during 
each accounting year 

(iv) The amount of intetest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed dthl during the year) 
but without adding the interest specified Linder the Micro. Small and Medium 

0.47 - 

Enteiprises Development Act, 2006 

(V) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of-  the 
accounting year 

(vi) The amount of further intereth remaining due end payable even in the 
succeeding, years, until such date when the interest, dues above are actually 
paid to the Small enterprise, for the-  purpase of disallowance of a deductible 
expenditure 'under section 23 of the Micro, Small and. Medium Enterprises 

0.47 

- 

- 

Development Act. 2006 

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identEed on the basis of Infotmation collected 
by the management. 

Note '431 Capital management 

The Company manages. it's capital to ensure that it wit be able to 'continue as a going concern while maximising the returnto stakeholders 
through equity and internal accumulations.- 

The capital structure of the Company consists of working capital debt (borrowings as detailed in notes 17 and 19 offset by Cash end bank 
balances) and total equity of the Company_ 

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements, 

The Company's nianagement reviews the' capital structure of the Company on a need basis when planning any expansions arid growth 
strategies. 
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Tata Power Solar Systems Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 
CIN: U40106KA19139PLC034989 

Note - 36: Related Party Disclosure 

Note -36.1: Names of Related parties and relationships: 

Holding Company The Tata Power Company', Limited 
Promoters holding more than 20% in the Holding 
Company 

Tata Sons Limited 

Fellow subsidiaries Tata Power Renewable Energy Limited 
Tata Power Delhi Distribution Limited 
Chemical Terminal Trombay Limited` 
Tata Power Trading Company Limited 
Walwhan Renewable Energy Limited 

Wholly Owned Subsidiary Chirasthaayee Saurya Leaked 
Key Management Personnel Mr, Anil Sardana- Chairman (upto 30.04.2018) 

Mr. Praveer Sinha- Chairman (wet. 04.05.2018) 
Mr, Ashish Khanna- Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 
Mr. Seethanathy Chander- Director (upto 29.03.2018) 
Mr. Sowmitan Ramakrishnan- Director (uoto 11.07.2018) 
Mr. Subhash Chander Chetal- Director (upto 16.10.2017) 
Mr. Ramesh .Subramanyarn- Director Nato 11.072018) 
Ms. Supama Mitre- Director (uoto 28.062018) 
Ms. Anjeli Bans& - Director (wet. 20.07.2018) 
Mr. Mahesh 0 Paranipe - Director (wet, 10,072018) 
Mr. Mend Agarvral • Director (wet 10.07.2019) 
Mr. Satish Gupta -Chief Finanial Officer 
Miss Neha Malik - Company Secretary (unto 31.07.2018)' 
Mr. Amey S. Naik - Company Secretary (w.e.t01.06.2018) 

'Amalgamated with The Tata Power Company Limited w,e.f March 1.2018 

Note - 36.2: Transactions during the year 

Rs in Lakhs 
Particulars( Fellow Subsidiaries Holding Company/Promoters 

holding more than 2014 in the 
Holding Company 

Wholly Owned Subsidiary 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2019 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2018 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2019 

For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2016 

For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2019 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2018 

1 Sale of Materials 
Tata Power Renewable Energy Limited 
Tata Power Delhi Distribution Limited 
Tata Power Trading Company Limited 
Walwhan Renewable Energy Limited 
The Tata Power Cornoany Limited 
Chiresthaeybe Saurya Limited 

188,524.02 

1.325.70. 

121,637.47 
5.94 

_ 
- 
- 

- 
- 3.94 

- 

- 
- 
-- 

- 
- 

29.401.19 
2 Services Rendered 

The Tata Power Company Limited 
Tata Power Renewable Energy Limited 
Chemical Terminal Tiorbbay Limited 
Chirasthaayee Saurva Limited 
Tata Power Trading Company Limited 
Tata Power belle Distribution Limited 

- 
1924.33 

_ 
51.96 

6.27 

- 
571.88 

1.87 
- 
- 

20.74 

38,56 

• 

38.06 

- 
, 
- 
, 

- 
- 
- 

289.91 
. 
- 

- 
- 
- 

77.17 
- 
- 

3 Services Received 
Tata Power Trading Company Limited 
The Tata Power Company Limited 
Tata Sons Limited 

439.33 976.02 

_ 
294,64 
669.60 

.. 
691.33 

1,261:94 
4 Purchaser(Sale) of Property. Plant and 

Equipment 

The TAM PoOrer Company Limited 
Walwhan Renewable Energy Limited 
Maithon Power Limited 

. 

.. 

0.37 
(0.14) 
1.43 

2.40 

- - 
5 Reimbursement of Expenses 

Chirasthaavee Setae Limited 
Coastal Gujarat Power Limited - 

5.75 
- 

6 Dividend Paid 
The Tata Power Company Limited - 3,446.64 

7 Interest Paid 
Walwhan Renewable Energy Limited 81.74 

8 Interest Received 
Chirasthaayee Saurya Limited 15.09 92.53 

9 Loan given during the period 
Chirasthaayee Saurya Limited 1,998.65 6:967.83 

10 Loan taken during the period 

Wolvrhan Renewable Energy Limited 30,894.00 - - 

11 Loan Repaidtluring the period 
Walwhan Renewable Energy Limited 
Chirasthaayee Saurya Limited 

22.393.00 - - - 
2,098.65 

- 
7.812.83 

Sale•of gocalsensteervices to related parties were made at the Company's usual list prices Purchases were made and services were received at market price. 

cie 

\S \nti 



Tate Power Solar Systems Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 
CIN: U401066111989PLC034989 

Note -36,3: Compensation of key management personnel 

Rs. In Lakhs 
Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2019 
For the year ended 

March 31,2018 

Short-term benefits 
(Refer Note below) 

3.90 10.84 

Note: 
The Directors were paid directors sitting fees during the year ended March 31.2019 and March 31, 2018, The remuneration payable to key management 
personnel is determined by the nomination and remuneration committee having regard to the performance of individuals and market trends. 

Rs. in Lakhs 
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2019 
As at 

March 31, 2018 
Balance Outstanding 2.00 

Note - 36.4: Legal and Professional charges paid to ey management personnel 

Rs In Lakhs 
Particulars As et 

March 31,2019 
As at 

March 31,2018 

Ashish Khanna 21.88 .262.55 

Nate- 36.5: Balances outsiandlng'as it yearend 
Ra in Lakhs 

1 Balance Receivable/(Payable) (net) As at 
March 31,2019 

As at 
March 31, 2618 

The Tab Power Company Limited (52.37) (129.08) 
Tate Power Renewable Energy 'Limited 141,236 15,512.61 
Tata Power Delhi Distribirthan Limited 17,86 47,78 
Chemical Terminal Trombay limited . 0,97 
Tate PowerTreding Company Limited 57.48 /72 
Chirasthaayee Saurya Limited /4.02 2.485.49 
Walwhan RerieWables Energy Limited 396.91 . 

2 Advances Received 

Tab Power Renewable Eller:0y Limited 478.74 

3 Loan Balance outstanding (payable)/ 

Walwhan Renewable& Energy Limited 8,501.00 _ 

ChirasthaaieeSaurya Limited 100.00 
4 Interest accrued outstanding (payable)/ 

receivable 
Walwhan Renewable& Energy Limited (51.64) - 
Chirasthaeyee.paurya Limited 1.32 

5 UnbIlled Revenue 

CdtrasthaaYee Sauna Limited - 0.03 

Tate Power Trading Conipany Limited 2.43 

Tata POWer Renewable Energy Limited 303.33 

6 Unearned Revenue 

Chirasthaayee Saurya Limited 532,28 

Tata Power Renewable Energy Limited - 3,668/8 

The amou ts oidstanding are untenured and will tie settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received. There have been no instances.of 
amounts d e to or due from related parties that have been written back or written off or otherwise provided for during the year. 

Note • 36.6: Other transactions and balance outstanding 

The Company had received an open Corporate Guarantee from The Tars Patter Company Limited, the Parent Company. for a maximum borrowing of 
Rs. 60,000 Laths (at at Mahn 31., 2018- Rs. 60,000 Lakhs) at any point in time. TheGbmpany has utilised the Corporate Guarantee given againtt 
various borrowings &Ong the period with a Maximum outstanding amounting to Rs 30000 Laths (as at March 317.2019- Rs. 10,0001.shlu) at any point 
in time. The Colin& 	ate Guarantee utilized and outstanding as at March 31,2019 is Rs. 30,000 Lakhs (as at March 31.2018- RS. NO. 



Tata Power Solar Systems Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2019 
CIN: U4010611A1989PLC034989 

Note -37: Segment Information 

The Company is a manulactirrer of solar photo-voltaic cells and modules as well as in the Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC) in the toter energy market, 
wherein the manufactured cells/nodules are utrlised. The Company is currently predominantly operating in a single geography i.e. India, with the total of exports being 
less than 10% of total revenues. 
Based on the. "management approach as defined in Ind-AS 108 ; Operating Segments, the Chef Operating Decision Marker (CODM) evaluates the Company's 
performance and allocates resources based on an analysts of various performance indicators by the overall business segment, i.e. the performance of the EPC projects. 

As the allocation of resources and profitability of the business is evaluated by the CODM on an overall basis, with evaluation into individual categories 16 understand the 
reasons for variations, no separate segments have been identified. Accordingly no additional disclosure has been made for the segmental revenue, segmental results 
and the segmental assets and liabilities. 

Note - 18: Earnings/ (Loss) Per Share 

Accounting Policy 
Beale earnings par emit); share Is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of equity shares considered for denying basic eaminge per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been 
Issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been 
actually issued el tea value (Leine average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares.are deemed convened as of the beginning of 
the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. 

In Rs. 
Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2019 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2018 

Basic eareinor4 floss) per share 

Diluted eamineW (total per snare 

3936 

39.38 

43,70 

43.70 

Note ; 38.1: Basic Earnings/ (Loss) Per Share 
Theeartingsaloss) and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings/ (loss) per share are as follows: 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2019 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Profit/ (loss) for the period attributable to Shareholders of 
the Company (Rs. 41 Laths) 

9.043.97 10.042.21 

Earnings/ (toss) used in the calculation of basic earnings 
per share (Rs: In Laren) 

9,043.97 10.042.21 

Weighted average number of equity shares for the 
purposes of basic earrings! (loss) Per share 

22.977,567 22,977,567 

Note - 38.2 Diluted Earnings/ (Loss) Per Share 
The earnings/(loss) andiveighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings, (loss) per share are as Sows:. 

Particulars For the year ended 
Marsh 31. 2019 

For the year ended 
March Si, 2018 

Profit/ (Loss) for the period attributable to Shareholders 9,043.97 10,042.21 

01  the Company (Rs. in Laklis) 
Earnings/ (Loss) used in the care:dation of bladed 
earnings per share (Rs. in Laths) 

9.043.07 101342.21 

Weighted average dumber of equity Shares for the' 
purposes of diluted aerningsf (toss) pershare 

24977,567 22977.567 

The Company does not have any outstanding equity instruments which are dilutive. 
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Tata Power Solar Systems limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 
CIN:1.140106KA1959P1C034989 

Note -39: As at March 31, 2019. the Company has Good and Service tax recoverable recorded under balances with government authorities 
(Note 14) amounting to Rs. 10,706.69 Lakhs ( As at March 31, 2018 - Rs. 7,568.53 Latins), The Company based on its assessment believes 
that the aforesaid is fully recoverable and accordingly no provision is required. 

Note -40: Significant Events after the Reporting Period 

There were no significant adjusting events that occured subsequent lithe reporting period other than the' events disclosed n the relevant 
notes. 

Note -41: Approval of financial statements 
The financial statements were approved For issue by the Board of Directors On April 17, 2019. 

Note -42, The Company is a Wholly owned subsidiary of Tata Power Company limited and accOrdingly IS exempted from the preparation of 
consolidated financial statements in tenn of Ministry of Corporate Affair Notification dated October 19, 2011. 

Note -43: The previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified. whereever necessary to conform to current year's classification.. 

.As Per.otk report of even date 

For S.R.Batlitai & Asseciates LLP 
ICAI Firm Registration umber 101049)Aff E300004 
Chartered Ace)] 	nts 

For arid on behalf ofthe'Board of Directors of 
Tata'POwer Solar 'System§ Llinited 
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